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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO: THE SHAREHOLDERS
ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT
SERVICES COMPANY (the "Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2022 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional
Accountants (SOCPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (*ISAs”) that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Jjudgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Recognition of revenue

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue was considered one of the main matters for review,
given that revenue is the main component of the company's
business, and there are potential risks of fraud and error related
to the recognition of revenue in accordance with the
international standards of auditing approved in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, and that the company provides different types
of products, and a huge number of transactions are carried out
On a daily basis, revenue is recognized through automated
systems.

We have designed auditing procedures 1o deal with
this key matter through a preliminary risk assessment
procedure that includes identifying risks and related
assurances by understanding the nature of the
company’s activity and its environment and
documenting and evaluating the revenue accounting
system covering activities, operations and internal
revenue control refated to performance of monitoring
and performance checks, A major control procedure
was tested to ensure the design, implementation and
enforcement of internal control  procedures.
Analytical procedures were alse applied. Qur IT
specialist also participated in the understanding and
evaluation of the revenue-related IT system and
testing the accuracy of data and reports issued by 1T
systems. Then, our audit controls were designed
according to the results of the risk assessment
procedures. We have verified on a test basis, of the
invoices issued by the company, and we have
implemented detailed analytical procedures to
understand that the reasons for the variance in
revenue compared to the last year had a rationale for
the business, that the revenue recognition criteria that
the company adopts for all major revenue sources are
appropriate and in line with accounting policies The
company disclosed in the financial statements.

Refer to note (3) for the accounting policy and note (21) for related disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Lease contracts

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The company has a large volume of lease agreements, in terms
of number and value, and the agreements are primarily related
1o renting stations.

IFRS 16 essentially clarifies the accounting treatment for
operating leases at inception, recognizing a right-of-use of the
leased assets and a corresponding liability for the amount
deducted from the lease payments over the lease term.

As of December 31, 2022, the value of the right to use the
assets of the company is an amount of 3,422 million Saudi
riyals, and the lease liabilities are 3,219 million Saudi riyals.

We considered this as a key audit matter due to ifs nature and
significance 1o the Company's financial statements. And you
need to apply substantial complex provisions and rules by the
management related to the terms contained in the contracts.

We have evaluated the procedures and controls
related to monitoring lease contracts.

We also assessed the appropriateness of significant
judgments, estimates and assumptions made by
management.

Evaluate the accuracy of the lease contract data by
testing the lease contract data obtained by the
management by examining the lease contract
documents,

We tested lease schedules, on a sample basis, by
recalculating the amounts relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities based on the terms of the
leases.

We checked whether all necessary information has
been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, in accordance with [FRS 16.

Refer to note (3) for the accounting policy and note (6) for related disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Lease contracts

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The company has a large volume of lease agreements, in terms
of number and value, and the agreements are primarily related
1o renting stations.

IFRS 16 essentially clarifies the accounting treatment for
operating leases at inception, recognizing a right-of-use of the
leased assets and a corresponding liability for the amount
deducted from the lease payments over the lease term.

As of December 31, 2022, the value of the right to use the
assets of the company is an amount of 3,422 million Saudi
riyals, and the lease liabilities are 3,219 million Saudi riyals.

We considered this as a key audit matter due to ifs nature and
significance 1o the Company's financial statements. And you
need to apply substantial complex provisions and rules by the
management related to the terms contained in the contracts.

We have evaluated the procedures and controls
related to monitoring lease contracts.

We also assessed the appropriateness of significant
judgments, estimates and assumptions made by
management.

Evaluate the accuracy of the lease contract data by
testing the lease contract data obtained by the
management by examining the lease contract
documents,

We tested lease schedules, on a sample basis, by
recalculating the amounts relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities based on the terms of the
leases.

We checked whether all necessary information has
been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, in accordance with [FRS 16.

Refer to note (3) for the accounting policy and note (6) for related disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the annual report and conclude that there is 2 material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other
standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants
SOCPA, Regulations for Companies and Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, i.e. the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery.
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
ALDREES PETROLEUM AND TRANSPORT SERVICES COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment, net
Right-of-use assets, net

Defarred costs, net

Investment in joint ventures
Investment al amertised cost
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from a related pariy

linvestmenl at fair value through profit or loss
Other assets

Prepaid expenses

Invenlories, net

Contract assets

Trade receivable, net

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Reained eamings

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITES

Leng term loans

Non-current pertion of lease liabilities
Employees’ defined benefits liabilities
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for zakat payable

Current portion of lease liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Due to a related party

Trade payables

Current portion of long term loans
Short term {oans

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

L

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Note SR SR
5 1,558,537,372 1,297,099.068
61 3,422,292,974 3,026,862,518
7 17,786,886 18,383,404
8 15,693,748 14.216.933
9-1 145,000,000 =
§,159,311,180 4,356.561,923
27 2,193.242 2,229,230
92 B 19,956,843
10 208,474,705 172,510,537
11 168,895,372 127,210,096
12 143,627.283 112,397,567
21-3 75,119,084 37.039,437
13 409,794,354 333.522,920
14 148,166,876 273,964,384
1,156,270,916 1.078.831.014
6,315,582,006 5.433,392,937
15 750,000,000 750,000,000
119,532,881 95,350,189
239,811,445 149,799,650
1,109,344,326 995.149,839
16 10,285,714 48,500,000
6-2 2,906,055,383 2,598.029.680
17 111,383,995 91,313,728
3,027,725,092 2,737,843, 408
18 11,880,835 9,978,098
6-2 313,414,859 332.676,161
12 435,261,759 408.567,231
27 2,100,922 1.822.077
20 1,175282.874 916,284,694
16 20,571,429 33,071 429
% 220,000,000 -
2,178,512.678 1.702.399,690
5,206,237,770 4,440,243,098
6,315,582,096 5,435,392,937

The accompany notes fron (1) to (36) are integrated part of these financial statements



Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT QF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 20217

Note SR SR
Revenue 21 12,356,078,987 9.109,614,772
Cost of revenuc 22 (11,761,517,340) (8,658.172.120)
GROSS PROFIT 594,561,647 451.442.652
EXPENSES
Selling and marketing 25 (7,417.453) (+,896,450)
General and administration 24 (224,122,445) (163,189,363)
Other income, net 26 7,820,173 1,446,054
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 370,841,922 284.802.873
Financial charges 25 (124,399,561) (106,029.436)
Company sharz in gains of investment in joint venture 8 1.476.815 3.911.529
Interast income from investment at amortised cost 9-1 1,548,958 -
INCOME BEFORE ZAKAT ESTIMATED 249,468,134 182,684,966
Zakat estimaied 18 (7,641,216) (3.380.000)
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 241,826,918 176,804,966
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
ITEMS NOT TO BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS:
Re-measurement for employess® defined benefits 17 (15,132,431) (14,137,498)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - 226.694.487 162,667,468
Earnings per share from:
Income from operations 28 4.94 3.80
Net income for the year 28 3.22 2.36

The accompany notes from (1) to (36) are integrated part ol these linancial statements,
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share Statutery Retained
Capital Reserve Earnings Total
SR SR SR SR

Balance st | January 2022

750,000,000 95,350,189 149,799,650 995,149,839
Dividends (note 29) - - (112,500,000) (112,500,000)
Nel income for the year : » 241.826.918 241,826,918
Other comprehensive losses for the vear - - (15,132,431) (15,132,431)
Total comprehensive income for the year = - 226,694,487 226,694,487
Transfer to statutory reserve - 24,182,692 (24,182,692) -
Balance at 31 December 2022 750,000,000 119,532,881 239,811,445 1,109,344,326
Balance at 1 January 2021 600,000,000 77,669,693 214812678 §92,482 371
Capital Increass 150,000,000 - (150,000,000 -
Dividends - - (60,000,000 (60,000.000)
Net income for the year : C 176.804,966 176.804,966
Other comprehensive losses for the vear - - (14.137,498) (14,137.498)
Toral comprehensive income for the year - - 162,667 468 162,667.468
Transfer to statutory reserve - | 7,680.496 (17.680.496)
Balance 4t 31 December 2021 750,000,000 95,350,189 149,799,650 995.149.839

==

The accompany notes from (13w (38) are integrated part of these financial statements




Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2022 2021
OPERATING ACTIVITIES SR SR
Income before estimated zakat 249,468,134 182,684,966
Adjustment for:
Depraciation 130,896,767 113:607.840
Depregiation of right of use asset 273,274,821 267,277,951
Amortization of deferred casts 1,526,319 1,960,926
Company share in gains of investment in joint venlure (1,476,815) (3.911.529)
Realized and unrealized profit from invesiment at fair value through
profit and loss (353,233) (449.858)
Provision [or expetted credit Josses 9,663,762 2.586.680
Reversal of Provision for expected credit losses - (1.821,674)
Dividends from investments at fair value through profi of loss (1,022,648) -
Loss on sals of propetty and equipment 251,759 826,010
Provision for employees' defined benefits 17,553,182 12,080,928

681,782,048 374,842,240
Changes in opersting assets and liabilities:
Trade receivable (85.935,1%6) 40,636385
Contract Assets (38,079,647) (14,940,350)
Inventaries (31,229,716) (44.671.978)
Prepaid expenses (41,685.276) (19.890,497)
Other assets (35,964,168) (121.273.915)
Trade payables 258,998,180 410,485,164
Net related parties transaction 314,833 (73.910)
Acerued expenses and other ligbilities 26,694,528 87,397,498
Net ensh flows genernted from operations 734,895,586 912.510,637
Employees’ definad benefits paid (12,615,346) (9,344 .489)
Zakat paid (5,738,479) (3.878.218)
Net cash from operating activities 716,541,761 899.287.930
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to investments at amonised cost (145,000,000) -
Additions to investments at fair value through profit or loss (217,640,102) (75,263 483)
Proceeds from investments at fair value through profit or loss 237950,178 76,050,700
Deferred costs (929.801) (8,514,486}
Dividends received 1,022,648 -
Purchase of property and equipment (403,322,485) (239,802 230)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 10,735,453 5,798,926
Net cash used in investing nctivities (517,184,107) (241.730,575)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short term Joans 2,445,000,000 2.429.000.000
Repayment of short term loans (2,225,000,000) (2.506.747.81%)
Repayment of long term loans (50,714.2806) (47,633.636)
Repayment of lease liakilities (381,940,878) (275,170.471)
Dividends paid (112,500,000) (60,000,000}
Net eash used in financing activities (325,155,162) (460,551,926)
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (125.797.508) 197,005,429
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the vear 273,964,384 76,958.955
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 148,166,876 273,964 384
Non cash item:
Re-measurement for employess' defined benefits (15,132,431) [14,137,498)
Transferred from work in progress to proparty and equipment 57,905,060 27,969.236
Change of right of use 670,705,277 753,563,685
Capital increase - 150,000,600

k The nccompany notes from (1) to (36) are integrated part of these financial statements,
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

ORGANISATION AND ACTIVITIES

Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company (the “Company™) is 2 Saudi Joint Stock Company registerad in
Riyadh, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under commercial registration number 1010002475 issued in Rivadh on 13 Rabi
Al-Thani 1382H (corresponding to 12 September 1962).

The Company’s objectives, as per its commercial registration, include retail and wholesale trading of fuel, lubricants,
catering services and the transpertation of goods using highways in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in accordance with
license number 11/00001327, estzblishment of vehicle workshops and car washes and acquisition of land to construct
buildings for sale or lease for the interest of the Company and construction. managing. operating and renting take away
centres for hot and cold beverages and food.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance:

These finencial statements have been prepared in accordance with Interntional Financial Reporting Standard “IFRS™
that is endorsad in the Kingdom ol Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by Saudi
Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA™)

The Capital Market Authority issued the decision of the Board of Commissioners on (13) Muharram 1438H (16 October

2016) to require listed companies to apply the cost model when measuring the assets of property and equipment,

investment properties and infangible assets when adopting the IFRS for a period of 3 years begin from the date of

adoption of 1the International Financial Reporting Standards, On December 31, 2019, it issued a decision including the
following:

= Requiring listed companies to continue using the cost mode! option to measure real estate and investinent properties
for the financial periods of the fiscal year that begin before 2022.

- Allowing listed companie$ to use the fair value or revaluation model to measure real estate and Investment
propertizs for the financial periods of the fiscal year starting during or after 2022,

- Listed companies will continue to be required ta use the cost model option 1o measure machinery., equipment, and
intangible assets for 2 period of five years, starting from 1/1/2020, and the authority will study the appropriateness
of continuing to decide to use this model at the end of this period or the appropriatencess to aliow the use of the fair
value model option or ra-evaluation.

The company’s current liabilitias are in excess of current asseis by SR1,022,241,762 However, the management and
board of directors assumed that the company have the ability to continue as a geing concern. It is their assessment that
the company will generate sufficient profits and cash flows to meet ongoing liabilities. These financial statements have
been accordingly prepared on a going concern basis,

Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis using the dccrual basis of accounting except for

the following,

= Investments at fuir value through profit and loss measured at fair value.

¢ Investments al amertised cost,

+ Employee benefits obligations that are recognized at the present value of future liabilities using the expected credit
unit method.

Functional and présentation currency

The financial statemenis are presented in Saudi Riyal, which is the Company's functional currency.

Use of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities. income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.



Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

2) BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgments (Continued):

'

In paricular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertalnties and eritical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial ststements is
summarized as foliows:

Management periodically reassesses the economic ussful lives of tangible assets bused on the general condition of these
assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future,

- Munagement frequently reviews the lawsuits raised against the company based on 2 legal study prepared by the

company's legal advisors. This study highlights potential risks that the company may incurred in the future.

Management estimates the provision o decrease inventory 1o net realizable value if the cost of inventory may not be
recoverable, damaged, wholly or partially obsolete, and it selling price to fall below cost or any other factors that causes
the recoverable amount to be lower than its carrying amount.

The management determines the cost of the end of service benefits plans and the present value of the end of service
henefits obligations using actuarial valuations. Actuarial valuations include making various assumptions that may differ
from actual future developments and include determining a discount rate. future salary increases, death rates und future
increases in pension. Given the difficulty and evaluation of the underlying assumptions and their underlying
assumptions, which are long-term, the defined benefit obligation is vulnerable to changes in these assumptions. Thess
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

By their nature. provisions are dependent upon estimates and assessments whether the criteria for recognition have been
met, including estimates of the probability of cash outflows. Provisions for uncertain labilities involve management's
best estimate of whather cash outflows are probable.

The company determines the impairment in the value of non-financial asseis that arises when the carrying value of sn
assel or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount measured at fair value less costs of disposal or its value in
use. whichever is greater. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding, arm's
length sales of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs to dispose of the assets. The value in
use calculation is based on the discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the next five years budget
and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not et comnitted to'or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset performance of the cash-generating unit under review. The recoverable amount is most
sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected cash inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposss.

- The company determines the ellowance for expected credit losses by reference to a group of factors 10 ensure that

fimancial assets are not exaggerated as a result of the possibility of non-collectability, including their guality. age, credit
evaluation and guarantees. Economic data and indicalors are also taken into account.

Py =
P



Aldrees Petrolenm and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

2) BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgments (Continued):

The company can easily determine the conumission rate implicit in lease contracts, and accordingly it uses the
incrementul borrowing rate to measure lease obligations: The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of commission that
& company would have ta pay to horrow funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar vaiue to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment, aver a similar period and with a similar security. Thus. the incremental borrowing rate
reflects what the company has 1 pay, which requires estimation when observable rates are not available or when they
need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The company estimates the incremental borrowing
rate using obszrvable inputs such as commission rates prevailing in the market when available, and it has 1o make some
estimates specific to the entity

Estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected.

Fair value measurement

- Fair value represents the aimount may be eollected from the asset sale oF a boost (o convert commitment between
knowledgeable parties on the same terms and dealing with others and depends on the fair value measurement of the
following conditions:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or the most advantageous market for the asser or liability in the absence
of a principal market the company should be able to handle through the most advantageous market.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
technigues as [ollows:

- Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.2. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

'

Lavel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inpats). If the inputs
used to measure the fair value ol an asset or a liabllity might be categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy.
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirezy in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that s significant to the entire measurement,

- The Company recognizes transfers berween levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting peried during
which the change has occurred.

- Management belicves that its estimates and judgiments are reasonable and adequate.

Y’
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company has adopted the International Financial Reporting Standards in the preparation of the financial statements
a5 of December 31, 2022 in accordance with the instructions of the Saudi Oreanization for Chanered and Professional
Accountants ("SOCPA™). The mandatory implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards is effective
from | January 2017.

(a) Financial instruments

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when it becomes
a party to the cantractual provisions of the instrument, At initial recognition. the Company recognizes a financial
instrument at its f2ir value plus or minus, in the case of a financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets

IFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be classified and subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value. The
classification depends on the husiness model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of financial assef, determined at the time of initial recognition Financis] assets are classified info the
following specified categories under [FRS 9:

-Debt instruments at amortized cost:

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT), with gains or losses recycled to profit or
loss on derecognition;

- Equity instrumants at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on dsrecognition: and

- Financial assets at fair value through profit and less (FVPL).

Financial assets classified as amortized cost
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsaquently measured at amortized cost less impairment loss
(except for debt investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):
* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets in arder 1o colleet contractual
cash flows: and
s The contractual terms of the Instrument give rise on speeified daes 1o cash flows that are solely paytnents of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

If a financial asset does not meet hoth of these conditions, it is measured at fair value.

The Company makes an assessment of a business model at portfolio fevel as this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. 1o making an assesstnent of whether an asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractuz] cash flows, the Company considers:

» Management's stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.

= The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and. in particular, the way those risks are managed:

» How management evaluates the performance of the portfolio;

+  Whether the management’s strategy focus on earning contractual commission income:

« The degree of frequancy of any expected asset sales;

s The reason for any asset sales; and

= Whether assets that are sold are held for an extended peried of time relative to their contractual maturity or
are sold shortly afier acquisition or an extended time before maturizy.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Contpany will
consider the contractual terms of the instrument. This will include assessing whether the financial assel contains 2
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition,

Income is rzcognized on an effective interest basis for debr instruments measured subsequently at amortized cost
Interest is recognized in profit or loss statement. Debt instruments that are subsequently ineasured at amortized cost
are subject 1o impairment
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets designated as FVOCI with recyeling to profit or Joss
Debl instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVOCI:

¢ The financial asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the finaneial assets; and

¢ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt financial instruments measured at FVOCI, commission income and impairment losses or reversals are
recognized in profit or loss statement and computed in the same manner as for {inancial assets measured at amortized
cost,

All other changes in the carrying amount of these instruments are fecognized in the statement of comprehansive
income and accumulated under the investment revaluation reserve. When these instruments are derecognized, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recoghized in other comprehiensive income aré reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.

Investment in equity instruments designated as FVTPL
Equity investment instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss, unless the company designates that
investment as held for non-trading and at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Debt instruments thal do not meet the amortized cost eriteria of fair value through other comprehansive income are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. In addition, debt instruments that meer the amortized cost criteria, which
have been designated at fair value through profit or loss to avoid account niismatches, are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Debt instruments may be designated as at FVTPL upon inltial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities
orrecognizing gains and losses on different basis. The company has not designated any debt instrument at fair value
through profit or loss since the date of initial application of IFRS No. (9) as of January 1, 2018.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortized cost to fairvalue through profitor loss when the business model is
changed such that it no longer meets the exhaustive cost eriteria. Reelassification of debt instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss is not permitted upon [nitial recognition.

Financial assets are measured at fair value atthe end of each review pericd. with any zain or loss arising on re-
measurement recognized in profit or loss.

Commission income on debt instruments at fair value is included in the statement of profit or loss.
P

Dividend ncome on nvestments in equity instrumets at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Investment in equity instruments designated as FVOCI

On initial recognitipn, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVOCI. Designation as at FVOC] is nat permitted if the equity
investmeni {s held for rading.

A financial asset or financial liability is held for trading if:

e Itisacquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

»  On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there |s evidence of a recent actual pattem of short-term profit-raking; or

o Itis a derivarive (excepr for a derivative that is a financial guarantes contract or & designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCT are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they arc measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other
comprchensive income and accumulated in other reserves. Gain and losses on such squity instruments are never
reclassified to statement of profit or loss and no impairment is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Investment
in unguoted equity instruments which were previously accounted for at cost in accordance with 1AS 39, are now
measured at fair value. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to statement of profit or joss on disposal
of the investments.

Dividends en these invesiments are recognized in statement of profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Investment ravaluation reserve includes the cumulative net change in fair value of equity investment measurad at
FVOCL When such equity instruments are derecognized, the related cumulative amount in the fair value reserve is
wansferred to retained eamings.

Impairment of financial assets

T'he company determines the provision for expected credit losses for debt instruments that are measured at amortized
cost or at the falr value of other comprehensive income, such as lease contracts receivable, trade receivables, in
eddition to loan liabilities and financial guarantee contracts.

No impairment losses are recognized for investments in equity instruments. The amount of ECL reflects the changes
in credit risk since the initial recognition of the financial instrument.

The company applies the simplified method or approach to caleulating the impairment for trade receivables; taking
into consideration the expected credit losses over the life of the estirated cash flows. Expected credit losses on
financial assets are estimated using a flow rate based on the company’s historical credit loss experience. adjusted for
factors specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both current and future conditions
at the reporting date, including the time value of meney if appropriate:

For all other financial instruments, the Company applics the general method or approach for calculating the amount
of impairment, Lifetime ECL is recorded when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognitionand 12-month ECL is recorded if'the credit risk on the financial instrument has not ingreased significantly
since initial recognition. An assessment of whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition by considering the change in the risk of default over the remaining life of the financial
insrrument.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments (Continued)

Measuring and estimating expected credit losses

cconomic conditiens and an assessment of both the curvent as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting dage, including time vajue of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Company applias the general approach to calculate impairment. Lifetime ECL
is recognized when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initiz! recognition and 12 month ECL is
recognized the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial rezognition. The
assessment of whether credit risk of the financial instrument has incregsed sigaificantly since initial recognition is
made through considering the change in risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

The measurement of expected credit lasses is-a function of the probability of default, loss given default (iz. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of defait
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default
for financial assets. this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date. Exposure at default
for ofT balance sheet items is arrived at by applying a eredit conversion factor to the undrawn portion of the exposure,
Where lifetime ECL is measured on 2 collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of significant increases in
credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financia! instruments are companyed on
the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Company’s trade and other receivables, finance lease recéivables and
amounis due from customers are each assessed as a separate company. Loans to related parties are assessed
for expected credit Josses on an individual basis);

» Past-due siatus;

= Nature. size and industry of debtors: and

» External credit ratings where available,

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce the carrving amount of the
financial asset in the statemnent of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire:
or it transfers the financial asset or substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership o anaother entity. If the
Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all the risks and reward of ownership and continues 10 conirol the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its relained interest in the asset and associated lizbility for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Company retains substanticlly all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collaieralized borrowing for the
pracecds received,

= —
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost have been classified and measured at amortized cost using the effective
vield method, For financial liabilities that are designated as a1 FVPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would ereate or enlarge an accounting mismatch in statement of profit or loss. Changes in fair value antibuable to 8
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to the statement of profit or loss, The liability credit
reserve includes the cumulative changes in the fair value of the financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss that are astributable to changes in the credit risk of these liabilities and which would not create or enlarge
accounting mismatch in statement of profit or loss. Amount presented in liability credit raserve ars noz subsequently
transferred w statement of profit or loss. When such investments are derecognized, the related cumulative amount in
the Tizbility credit reserve is transferred lo retained earnings. Since the date of initial application of IFRS 9 (i.e. !
January 2018), the Company has also not designated any financial liability as at FVPL, The Company derccognizes
financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Impairment Non - Financial assets

At each reporting date. the Company assesses whether there are indications that an asset may be impaired. In the
event of any indication, or when there is a need to conduct an annual impairment test for an asset, the company
estimates the recoverable value of the assets, An asset's recoverable amount is the higher fair value of that asset or
cash-generating unit less costs of disposal and its value in use. For individual asseis, unless they do not generate cash
inflows, they are determined to be largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unil exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down Lo its recoverable amount,

In assessing valuein use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific (o the asset. When
determining the fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. 1T any of these
transactions cannot be deterimined, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are confirmed by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices of publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators,

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the expense-related
categorizs that are consistent with the function of the impaired assets, except for property that previously underwent
revuluation that was included in the statement of comprehensive income. Also. in this case, the impairment is
recognized in other comprehensive income up to the amount related to any previous revaluation.

With regard 1o assets other than geodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting dare to determine the possibility
of disappearance or diminishing of uny indication of previously recognized impairment losses. and the company, if
such indication exists, estimates the value of the essets or the recoverable cash-generating unit. and it is not reversed
A previously recognized impairment loss. unless there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last Impairment loss was recognised. and the reversal is limited 5o that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation. Ifno fmpairment loss has been recognized for the assets in previous years,
the reversal is recognized in the siatement of profit or loss unless the assets ara carried at a revaluzd value, in which
case the reversal is treated 2s a revaluation increase.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Property and equipment
(1) Recognitiver and measurement

ltems of propefty and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impzirment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset 1o a working condition for its intended use. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that eguipment.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as items (major
components) of property and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment and are recognized net within “other expense™ in the
slatement of comprehensive income,

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrving amount of the item if
it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of property and equipment are recognized in statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

(i) Depreciation

(c)

Items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis in statement of income over the estimated
useful Tives of each component. Land is not depreciated,

liems of property and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed and are ready for use. or in
respect of intzmally constructed assets; from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the sherter of the estimated useful life or term of the lease, whichever
isshorter.

The depreciations rate of property and equipment for the current and previous year are as follows.

Depreciation rate

Buildings 3

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease contract term
of useful life

Machinery and equipment 0

Trucks 7,14 with 20% salvage value

Vehicles 20-25

Computers 12,5-23

Tools 12-20

Fumniture & fixture 10

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date.

Projects under construction
Projects under construction are carried at cost. and when the project is ready for use. it is transferred 10 its own item
of property and equipment

2 o
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition

(c)

-

N

[wy

The Company recognizes revenue mainly from sales of petroleam and diesel. transportation services and lsasing
upon delivery of goods and rendering of services to customers. Revenue from the sale of the goads is recognized
basad on 4 five step model as set out in IFRS 15!

- Step 1. Identify the contract with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and pbligations and sets out the criteria that must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performiince obligation is 2 protise in a contract
with a custemer to transfer & good or service to the customer,

- Step 3. Determine the transastion price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects te be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalfof third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has
more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the transaction price 10 each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

- Step 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies o performance obligation,

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of tiie following criteria
is mel:

. The customer simultansously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company ‘s performance s the

Company performs, or

. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asser is created or

enhanced; or

- The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has

an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations, where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognized at the point in
time ar which the performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Company satisfies-a perforimance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services, it creates a
contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. Where the amount billed to the
customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognized, this gives rise 10 a contract liability,

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received ar receivable net of discounts and taxes. taking
into account contractunlly defined terms of payment.

Revenue is recognized in the statement of profit or loss to the exzent thart it is prebable that the 2conomic benefits
will flow ta the Compahy and the revenue and costs. if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Accounts receivable

Accounts recetvable are stated at original invoice amount less uppropriate zllowarnce for any doubtiul wade accounts
receivable. an estimate for allowance for doubtiul 1rade accounts receivable is made by applying the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses o be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cast and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is deermined based
on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure incurrad in acquiring the inventories.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses,

Offsetting

Financial liabilities are set off against [inancial assets; and the net amount is shown in the financial position only
v:hen the obliging legal rights are available and when settled on net basis or the realization of assets or settlement of
liabilities is done a1 the same time.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if. as @ result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated raliably, and il is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation,

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected futurs cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessmenis of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid in advance for renting, offices. employees housing and other services.
Prepaid expenses are amontized, using the siraight line method, over the period of the related contracts.

Deferred costs

Deferred costs represent key money paid for renting new petral stations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Deferred
costs are amortized, using the straight line method, over the period of the contracts,

Investment in jointly controlled entity

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 1o
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement.
which exisis only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control,

The: results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these Financial Statemets
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity methad, a joint venture is initially recognised n the
Statement of Financial Position et cost und adjusted thereafter o recognise the Company's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the Company s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Company's interest in tha joint venture (which includes any long-terin interests that, in
substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the joint venture). the Company discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made paynients on behall of the associate or joint venture. |f the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Company resumes recognising its share of those profiss only afler its share of the
profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

An investment in a joint venture is-accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On dcquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable asssts and lizbilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which js included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Company ‘s share of the net fair value of associate’s or joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment. is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the periad
in which the investment is acquired.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Trade payable and acerued expenses

Liabilities are recognized for amounts ta-be paid in the future for goods or services recéived, whether billed by the
suppliers or not.

Contract balances
Contract Assets

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods and services transfeired by
the company to the customer. Ifthe company transfers goods or services ta a customer before the customer
pays any consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recagnized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the company performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

It represents advance payments received against prepaid fuel cards issued by the company that have not
yet been used by customers as at the statement of financial position date. in addition to the unearned
interest received in advance on rentals.

Zakat

Zakat 13 provided on accrual basis in accordance with the Regulations of the General Authority for Zakat and Income
("GAZT™) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The zakat provisien is chargzd to the statement of comprehensive
income, Any differences resulting from the final assessments are recorded in the yvear of their finalization

Employess' defined henefits liahilities

Provision for employee'send of service benefits is deducted from their periods of service at the linancial position
daze. Provision for employees’ end of seryice benefits is made according te the expected unit method in accordance
with TAS 19 Employee Benefits, taking into account Saudi Labor Law. The pravision is recognized besed on the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using assumptions for the average annual salary
increase ratio. the average work period of employees and an appropriate discount rate. The probabilities used are

Caleulated on 2 constant basis for sach period and reflect the best management estimates, The discount rate is
determined based on the best avaitable market returns estimates available at the reporting date.

The re-measurament of actuarial valuation was perforined by the Al Khwarizmi for Actuarial Services and was carried
out using the expected eredit module.

The main assumptions used foractuarial valuation were as follows:

Employee tum over Maderate
Long term salary increase rate 4.45%
Discount rate of cash flow 4.45%

Statutory reserve

As required by Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies. 10% of the net income for the year should be transferred
to the statutory reserve, The Company may resolve 1o discontinue such transfers when the total reserve equals 30%
of the capital, the reserve is notavailable for dividend distribution,
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Financeincome and finance costs

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying asssts (which are assets
that need a significant period of time, more than one yeur, to get these assets ready for their intended use) are added
1o the cost of these assets until these assels are ready for their intended use. No financing cost was capitalized during
the standstill period.

To the extent that the floating rate financing is vsed to fund and hedge qualifying assets in an effective cash flow
hedge of interest rate risk. The effective portion of the derivative is recognized in the statemen: of ather
comprehensive income and transferred to the statement of profit or loss when the qualifying assets afTect profit or
loss, and to the exient that the fixed rate funding is used to fund and hedge the qualifying assets inan effective cash
flew hedge for interest rate risk, it reflects the costs of Financing that is capitalized is the interest rate that is covered.

Iavestment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings whose casts depend on the qualifying
assers is deducted from the financing expenses eligible for capitalization.
All other financing expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss ia the period in which they are fneurred,

Finance revenue

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as FVTOCI
equity investments, financing income is recorded using the effective commission rate. The effective commission
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument. or. where appropriate; a shorter period. to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability.

(r) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency fransactions are translated into Saudi Riyals al the rates of exchange prevailing at the time of the
transactions, at financial position date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies are
translated 10 Saudi Riyals at the exchange rates prevailing on that date, Gains and losses arising on settlement and
translation of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income,

(s) Expenses
Expenses incurred by the Company consist of administrative and general cxpenses, operating expenses and selling
and marketing expenses. Sales cosis are charged at full cost of materials, direct labor and indirect costs. Other
direct and indirect expenses relating to managemen! that are not refated to the production function are classified as
administrative and general expenses. Joint expenses are distributed. il necessary, between administrative and
general expenses and operating expenses on 4 consistent basis. The acerual principle is zpplied in charging the
finanicial period with administrative and genersl expenses. Sales and marketing expenses consist mainly of costs
ncurred in marketing the Company’s products and services.

(t)  Right of use asset and lease liabllities

Assets held under leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair
value and present value of the minimum lease payments, Subszquent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted
for in accordance with the agcounting policy applicable ta thar asset

Assets hield under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised In the Company’s Statement
of Financiz| Position. Rentala in respect of operating leases are charged 10 the Statement of Profit or Loss aver the
term of the leases.

The Company has recognized new assets and liabilities for its operating lcases of various types of contracts including
warehouse and depot facilities, sccommodation/ office rental premises, etc. Each lease pavment is allocated betweer
the liability 2nd finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or [nss pver the lease period so as to produce &
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balunce of the liability for each period. The nght-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shonter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straighi-line hasis:

e
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Assets.and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.

i. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
- any lease payments made at or hefore the commencement date less uny lease incentives received
- any initizl direct costs, and
- restoration costs.
ii. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:
- fixed payments (including in-substance fixet] payments), less any lease incentives receivable
- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate
- amounts expected 1o be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees
- the exercise price of a purchase aption if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
- Paymenis of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflocss the lesses exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted vsing the incremental borrowing rate, baing the rate that the lessee would have
10 pay 1o borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in & similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a strajghi-line basis as
an expense in Statement of Profit or Loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain & wide range of different terms and conditions. The
leasz agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for bomrowing purposes.

The company recognized new assets and liabilities for its operating lease contracts, which were fuel stations. Each
lease payment is allocated between the linbility and the finance cost. The financing cost is charged to the siatement
of comprehensive income over the lease period 5o that a fixed periodic rate of interest is achieved on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term, on a straight-line basis

Segmental reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged sither in providing producis or services
(2 business segment) or in providing products or services within & particular economic environment (a gengraphic
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that arz different from those of ether segments. Because the Company
carries out its activities entirely in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, reporting is provided by business segment only.

W
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

4)  New and amendments to standards and interpretations

In the current year, the Company has applied 4 number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effactive for an accounting period
that begins on or after | January 2022. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on
the amounts reported in these financial stitements.

Standard Deseription

Amendments to IFRS 3

Reference to the The Company has adopted the amendments o IFRS 3 Business

Concepiual Framework Combinations for the first time in the current year. The amendments update
IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the
1989 Framework. They alse add to IFRS 3 a requirement that. for obligations
within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would
be within the scope of IFRIC 21 Levies. the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the
levy has occurred by the acquisition date.

Amendments to |AS 16 The Company has adopted the amendments to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and
Property ,Plant and Equipment for the first time in the current year. The amendments prohibit
Equipmeni— Proceeds deducting from the cost of an item of properiy, plent and equipment any
befare Intended Use proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is available for tse,

i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it 1 be capable of operating In the manner intended by management.
Cuonsequently, an entity recognises such sales proceeds and related costs in
profit or loss. The entity measures the cost of those items in accordance with
IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of 'testing whether an asset is
functioning properly’. 1AS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the
technical and physical performance of the asset is such that It is capable of
being used in the production or Supply of goods or services. for rental 1o
others, or for administrative purposes,

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the
finuncial statements shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included
in profit or loss that relate to items produced that are not an output of the
citity's ordinary activities, and which line ltem(s) in the statement of
comprehensive income include(s) such proceeds and cost

Amendments to IAS 37 The Company has adopted the amendments to 1AS 37 for the first time in the
Onerous Contracis—Cast current year. The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract
of Fulfilling a Contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate

dirgctly o a contract consist of both the incremental costs of fulfiiling that
contract (examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allacation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be
the allecation of the depreciation charge for an item of property. plent and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract)

~
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

d) New and amendments to standards and interpretations (Continued)

Standard

Description

Annuz| Improvements (o IFRS
Accounting Standards 2018-
2020 Cyele

The Company has adopted the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to [FRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle for the first
time in the current year. The Annual Improvements include amendments to
Tour standards.

~ IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards

- IFRS 9 Financizl [nstrumentz
- IFRS 16 Leases

- IAS 4] Agriculture

Standards issued but not yet effective

Standard

Description

IFRS 17 (including the June
2020 and December 2021
amendments o IFRS 17)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and
1AS 28

Amendments Lo JAS 1
Amendments to IAS | and
IFRS Practice Staternent 2
Amendments 1o [AS §

Amendmernts 1o IAS 12

Insurance Contracts

Sale of Contribution of Assets benweean an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

Classification of Liabilities as Current of Non-current
Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The Company does not expect that the adoption of these new and revised standards and interpretations wifl have a
material impact on its financial statements.
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

6) RIGHT OF USE ASSETS, NET
6/1 The following tuble shows the movement in the right of use assets during the year represented in renting gas stations:

2022 2021
SR SR
At the beginning of the year 3,026,862,518 2.540,574,784
Additions 816,111,708 823,052,678
Disposal (145,406,431) (69.486,993)
Amartization (275,274,821) (267,277,951)
At the end of the year 3,422,292.974 3,026.862,518

6/2 Lease Liabilities

-The table below shows the leasg obligations based on the contractual maturity date:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

SR SR
Non-current portion of lease liabilitiag 2.906,053,383 2,598.029,630
Current portion of lcase labilitiss 313,414,859 332,476,161
Total lease labilities 3.219,470,242 2,930,705,841

The total interest expense on lease liabilities recognized during the year ended December 31, 2022 is  107,6 million Saudi Riyals
(31 December 2021: 93 million Saadi Rivals).(Note 25)
Expenses related to short-term and low-value legse contracts amounted 1047 miilion Saudi and 35,1 million Saudi respectively.
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Aldrees Petrolenm and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO TIHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

DEFERRED COSTS, NET

Cost:

At the beginning of the year
Additions

Writien off (*)

Al the end of the year

Amortization:

At the beginning of the year
Amortization for the year
Written off (*)

At the end of the year

Net book value:

2022 2021
SR SR
39,049,910 30,744,767
929,801 §.514.486
(1,666,331) (209.343)
38,313,380 39.049.910
20,666,506 18.914.923
1,526,319 1.960.926
(1,666,331) (209.343)
20,526,494 20.666,506
18.383,404

17,786,886

e —

(*) Due to the full amortization of the deferred costs releting 10 certain contracts of petroleum services segment.
during the year, the management has written of{ the deferred cost and accumulated amortization of the related

contracts.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

On 21 Shaaban 1434 (corresponding to 30 June 2013), the Company has signed a joint venture (JV) agreement with
Bertschi AG, an entity incorporated in Switzerland, to establish a jointly contralled entity namely Aldrees Benschi
for logistic services. On 22 March 2015, the Company and co-venture have made a contribution of SR $00.000 each
towards the establishment of the jointly controlled entity.

The following is the movement in the investments account,

At the beginning of the year

The company's share of investment

Atthe end of the year

4

2022 2021
SR SK
14,216,933 10,305.404
1,476,815 3.911.529
15,693,748 14,216,933
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investmenis in financial assets consist of the following:

9-1) Investment at amaortised cost
During the year ending on December 31, 2022, the company invested in sukuk inside the Kinadoni of Saudi Arabia
with an amount of 143 million Saudi riyals, and these sukuk carry fixed interest returns of 5.25%, $.5% annually

The company's management classified those investments in sukuk at amortized cost by passing these sukuk test
“representing only solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount qutstanding” based on the
business model prepared by the company's management.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

SR SR
Investment at amartised cost:
Investments in Sukuk Riyadh Bank 100,000,000 .
Investments in Suxuk Al-Rajhi Bank 45,000,000 -
Total investment at amortised cost 145,000,000 -

The movement in investments at amortised cost during the year was as follows:

2022 2021
SR SR
Balance atthe beginning of the year - -
Addition during the year 145,000,000 -
Balance at the end of the year 145,000,000 -

9-2) Investment at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2022 Decanber 31, 2021

SR SR
Investment at fair value through profit or ioss:
Invesiments in rraded securities - 19,876,843
Invesiments in real estate funds - 80.000
Total investment at fair value through profit or loss - 19,956,843

The invesiment movement ul fair value through profit and loss during the yedr was as [ellows:

December 31, 2022 Deczinber 31, 2021

SR SR
Balance at the beginning of the year 19,956.843 20,294.200
Addition during the year 217,640,102 75,263,485
Selling investments during the vear (237,950,178) {76.050,700)
Unrealized gains on revaluation of investments at [air vilue
through profit or loss - 47.914
Realized gains on revaluation of investments at fair value
through profit or loss 353,233 401,944
Balance at the end of the year - 19,956,843
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

OTHER ASSETS

Vat

Advance payments to suppliers
Receivables from employees
Miscellaneous

PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid rent
Prepaid government expenses
Others

INVENTORIES, NET

Fuel
Spare parts, lubricants and filters

Provision for slow moving and obsolate inventory

TRADE RECEIVABLE, NET

Trade accounts recaivable
Provision for expected credit losses

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
SR SR
110,683,840 103.641,626
61,604,496 44.800.210
32,629411 23,758.891
3,556,958 309.810
208,474,705 1725103537
December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
SR Sk
64,597,760 45.3-52 507
64,820,641 45.838.31!
39,476,971 36,019,278
168,895,372 127,210,096
December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021
SR SR
93,767,551 76.196.827
50,401,592 36.792.601
144,169,144 112,959,428
(541,861) (541.84a1)
143,627,283 112,397,567
December31, 2022 December 31, 2021
SR SR
427,714,940 341,779,744
(17,920,586) (8.256,824)
333,522,920

409,794,354

The movenent on the expected credit |osses provision was as follows:

Balance at | January
Charge during the year (Nole 24)
Written off and recovered during the year

Balance at 31 Decemher

A

e

December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
SR SR
8,256,824 7A91.818
9.663,762 2,586,680
- (1.821,674)
17,920,586 8,256,824



Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

13) TRADE RECEIVABLE, NET(Continted)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables as follows (*):

1 - 90 days

90 - 180 days
180 — 270 days
270 - 360 days
360 - 450 days
=430 days

(*) The amounts above include balances with overnment and govermnment ralated entities.

14) CASH AND CASH EQUVILANTE

Banks Balances

Deceinber 31, 2022 Decembar 31, 2021
Gross Allowance ECL Gross Allgwance ECL
Amaounts for Rate Amounts far Rate
impairment impsirment
loss loss
320,556,451 915,102 0.29% 251,070,309 23.711 001%
65,975,462 236,154 1.42% 20.333,636 12312 0.06%
12,895,961 621,181 4.82% 16.357.748 98.680 0.60%
4.117,106 646,005 7.96% 12,981.883 133447 1.18%%
6,343,740 975,924 15.38% 5.623.532 72.780 1.29%
13,826,220 13,826,220 100% 35,192,616 7.825.894 22.44%
427,714,940 17,920,586 341,779,744 8.256,824

cash in the investment portfolio

15) SHARE CAPITAL

December31, 2022 Decenber 31, 2021

5R
148,166,876 193,337,016
- 80.627.368
148,166,876 273,964 384

The Company's share capital at 31 December 2022 amounted to SR 750 million (31 December 2021 SR 750 mitlion) of
75 million shares (2021: 75 million shares) flully paid with a nominal value of SR 10 per share.

33
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022
17) Employees' deflined benefits liabilities

Employee benefits expense:

2022 2023
SR SR
Current service cost 14,692,873 10234417
Commission cost on employess' defined benefits liabilitles 2,860,309 [.846,511
Total employce benefits expense 17,553,182 12,080,928
The movement for emplayees' defined benefits liabilities is as follows:
2022 2021
SR SR
At the beginning of the year 91,313,728 74.439.791
Charge during the year 17,553,182 12.080,928
Re=measurement for employees’ defined benefits 15,132,431 14,137,498
Payments during the year (12,615,346) (9,344 489)
At the ending of the year 111,383,995 91,513,728

The actuarial valuation was performed by Al Khwarizmi for Actuarial Services and was carried out using the
expected credit module,

The main assumptions used for actuarial valuation were as follows:

2022 2021
Employee turn over Moderate Maderate
Long term salary increase rate 4.45% 2.40%
Dizcount rate of cash flow 4.45% 240%

A quantitative sensitivity snalysis (or significant assumption on the employees’ tsrminal benefits liabilities as a1 31
December 2022, 31 December 2021 is shown below:

Salary tncrease rate Discount rate
0,5% 0,5% 0,5% 0,5%
Assumptions _ Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
31 December 2022 148,310,210 139,86} 842 139,602,871 148,629,199
31 December 2021 122,853,934 113.832.715 113.622.427 123,128,394

%/%
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Aldrees Petrolenm and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

18) ZAKAT PAYABLE
a) The zakat charge consists of:

The charsed zakat consists of the following:

December 31,2022  December 31, 2021
SR SR
Provision for the year 7641216 5,880,000
Charged during the year by an increase - 5
Adjustment for previous years - )
Charge for the year 7:641,216 5,880,000
b) The calculation of zakat base is as follows:
Deceinber 31, 2022 Decomber 31, 2021
SR SR
Shareholders” equity — beginning of the year 095,149,839 832,482.371
Employees’ defined benefits 85,709,707 74,305,882
Long term financing / Credit balances 3,520,376,224 3,427,114.,675
Adjusted net income for the year 305,648,625 235,204,148
Deductions:
Baok value of long term assets, net (5,160,860,138) {4.356.561.923)
Dividends and Board of Directore’ remunerations (112,500,000) (60,000.000)
Zakat base(") (366,475,743) 152,545,153
¢} Adjusted net income for the year:
Decesnber 31,2022 December 31, 2021
SR SR
Net income for the year 249,468,134 182,684.966
provisions during the year 56,180,491 52.519.182
Adjusted net income for the yenr: 305,648.625 235.204.148

* Zakal 13 due @1 2.5% of the adjusted net income and 2,57768% of the zakat base minus the sdjusted income
The zakat charge for the years ending on December 31, 2022 and 2021 has been calculated based on adjusted profit.

Z
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

18) ZAKAT PAYABLE (Continued)

d) Movements In provision during the year

The movement in zakat provision is as follows:

2022 2021
SR 3R
Al the beginning of the year 9.978,098 7976516
Charge during the year 7,641,216 5.880.000
Paid during the year (5,738,479) (3.878218)
At end of the vear 11,880,835 9.978.098

e} Status of assessment

The Company has filed its zakat declarmation for all years up 1o 31 December 2021. The assessments have been
finalized with the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (The "ZATCA™) for all years up ta 31 December 2018,

The assessments for the year ended December 31, 2019 - 2021 have not been ralsed by the ZATCA, yet.

19) ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2
%

4
&
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Decentber 31, 2022 Decentber 31, 2021
SR SR
Cantract liabilities (Note 21.3) 249,535,114 244,721,646
Accrued expenses 123,966,781 145.2098.727
Advances from customers 61,759,864 18,546,858
435261,759 408,567.231
20) TRADE PAYABLES
Deceinber 32, 2022 Deceinler 31, 2021
SR SR
Saudi Arabizn Oil Cempany (*Arameo™) 1,110,835,951 877135719
Other trade payables 64,446,923 39,148,975
1,175.282,.874 916.264.694

—————



Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

21) Revenue

21-1 Revenue source

Below is a breakdown of the company's revenues from coniracts with customers:-

Petrol revenue

Transport revenus

Lease revenve

Revenue front car services and oils

21-2 Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at point in time

Services transferred over time

21-3 Contract balances

2022 2021
SR SR
11,722,899.468 8,555,047,742
308,350,589 267,477,705
250,582.907 224,861,769
74,246,023 62,227,556
12.356,078.987 9.109.614,772
2022 2021
SR SR
12,105,496,080 3,884,752,003
250,582,907 224,861,769
12,356,078,987 9.109.614,772

Contracl assets are represented in the revenugs of goads or services provided by the company to the customer and have
not been invoiced yet, and the movement on them during the year ending on December 31 was as follows:

Balance at | January
Contract assets during the vear
Transfer from cantract assets tn frade receivable

Contract Liabilities

2022 2021
37,039,437 22,099,087
1,177,701,966 1.089.810.835
(1.139.622,319)  (1,074,870.485)
75,119,084 37.039.437

The contract liabilities are represented in advance payments received for prepaid fuel cards issued by the company
that have not yet been used by customers as at the date of the statement of financial position. in addition to the unearned
return received in advance on rems. The movement on them during the year ended December 31 was as follows:

Balance at | January
Contract linbilities during the year
Transfer (o revenue

==
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2022 2021
244,721,646 201,027,547
1,752.293,602 1.329.298.647
(1,787,480,134) (1,285,604 548)
249,535,114 244.721.646




Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

22) COST OF REVENUE

2022 2021
SR SR
Inventory at the beginning of the year 112,397,567 67,725,589
purchases during the year 10,899,572,083 7.954,299.036
QOperating expenses during the year (Note 2-22) 893,174,973 748,543,062
Inventory at the end of the year (143,627,283) (112.397.567)
11,761,517,340 8.658.172.120
22-1 OPERATING EXPENSES
2022 2021
SR SR
Employees” salaries and benefits 331,918,288 250,542,459
Depreciation (note 5 & 7) 124,212,527 107,754,488
Amortization Right of use (note 6) 275,274,821 267,277,951
Rent 47,009,448 35,115,628
Car expense 40,476,006 29,146,651
Electricity and water 23,886,313 16,208,475
Insurance 9,280,137 8,286,903
Maintenance 9,471,637 6.396,758
Other 31,645,796 27,815,749
893,174,873 748,545.062
23) SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES
2022 2021
SR SR
Commissions. benus and-sales incentives 4,994,970 4,030,404
Advertising and publicity 2,422,483 866.046
7417453 4.896.450

e
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employees” salaries and benefits
Depreciatien (note 5)

Provision for expecied credit [osses (note 13)
Maintenance

Printing and stationery

Travel expense

Donations for sacial services

Utilities

Rent

Professional fees

Govemmemal expenses

Saudi Stock Market expenses (“Tadawul™)
Insurance

Other

FINANCIAL CHARGES

Bank charges (Note 16)
Interast on lease lizbilities (Note 6-2)

OTHER INCOME, NET

Losses from disposal of property and equipment

Realized gain from selling investmient at fair value through profit or loss

(Note 9-2)

Unrealized gain from revaluation of investiment at fair value through

profit or loss

Dividend received from inyestment at fair value through profit or loss

Lease claims
Others

£~

40

2022 2021
SR SR
178,947,987 128.292.014
8,210,559 7,814,278
9,663,762 2,586,680
3,558,456 3.597.450
2,251,898 1,347,290
2,849,223 2,352,126
2,662,020 3,595,124
2,380,811 1,760,295
1,326,330 1,107,286
1,885,075 1,491,829
1,272,095 1.207.215
770,771 841.308
$88.936 791,364
7,454,522 7,404,904
224,122,445 163,189,363
2022 2021
SR SR
16,819,961 13,017,533
107,579,600 93,011,903
124,399,561 106,029,436
2022 2021
SR SR
(251,759) (826,010)
353,233 401,994
- 47914
1,022,648 .
4,714,000 :
1,982,051 1.822.186
7,820,173 446,034




Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

27) RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

During the year, the Company ttansacted witl following related parties. The transactions are tnade in normal course
of business and terms of these transactions are approved by the Board of Directors.

Nane Relationship
Mr. Hamaé Mohammad Aldrees Member of the Board of Directors
Mr. Abdul Mohsin Mohammad Aldrees Member of the Board of Directors
Aldrees Industrial 2nd Trading Compiny One of the partners is a member of the Board of Ditectors
Seven Orbits Company for Tradinz One of the partners is 2 imember of the Board of Directors
Aldrees Benschi Logistic Services Joint ventura

The significant transactions are as [ollows:

2022 2021
Nature of transaciion SR SR
Purchase of machinery, equipment and spare parts 8,410,386 4,829,642
Rental expenses (dapreciation of the right to use the asscis) 2,782,014 2,803,694
Non-interest bearing funding 2,193,242 2,229,230

The reiated party balances are as follows:

Deceanber 31,2022 Decober 31, 2021

SR SR
Due from a related party
Aldrees Bertschi 2,193,242 2,229,250
Due 10 a related party:
Aldrees Industrial and Trading Company 2,100,922 1,822,077

%{%
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)

Rewards for members and other committees and related expenses

2022 2027
SR SR
Compensation for members and ssnior executives 17,175,677 11,851,005
Board remuneration 3,299,000 3,200,000
Expenses and fees to attend the meetings of the Board of Directors and 1,001,000 995.000
the relevant commitiees
Senior management compensation (senior executives)
2022 2021
SR 5R
Short-term employee benefits 2,675,408 8.804.196
Defined employee benelit liahilities 1,168,344 1,069,090

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings per share atiributable to income from operations and net income was calculated by dividing income from
operations and net incame for the period by the weighted average number of outstanding shares of 75 million as of
31 December 2022 (3| December 2021: 75 mnillion sheres).

DIVIDENDS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATIONS

The general assembly in its meeting on 27 Rajab 443H (corresponding to 28 February 2022) has approved to
distribute cash dividends amounting to SR |12.5 millien representing SR 1.5 per share representing 15% of the
Company’s share capital. and Dishurse an amount of SAR 500,000 to each member of the board of directors and the
secretary of the board of directors for the year 2021. The amount distributed as in accordance with the regulations of
the ministry of commerce and the Capital Market Authority.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a) Ai December 31, 2022, the Company had outstanding contingent liabilities in the form of letters of guaraniee
amounting to SR 3.334.6 million (202] SR 2,689.8 million).

b) The company has capital commitments as at December 31, 2022 amounting to SRI17.1 million (2021: SR
68,4 million).

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Since the Compuny carries out its activities entirely inthe Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, réporting is provided by business
segment only. The Company has determined its business seaments on the basis of type of goods supplied and servicss
rendered by the Company's business segments and reported 1o the Company s executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance

Transactions between the business segménts are based on an urm length basis. For executive management purposes,
the Company is organized in the following business scament:

e Pewroleum Services Segment
= Transport Services Segment

A o
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continned)
The selected segment information is provided by business segment as follows:

As of / for vear ended 31 December 2022

Towzl assets

Total lizhilities

Revenue

Cost of Revenue

Gross profit

Depreciation and amortization
Income {rom operations

Net income

Deferred cost additions
Capital expenditwre additions

s of / for vear ended 31 Degen 202
Total assets
Total liabilitias
Revenue
Cost of Revenue
Gross profi
Depreciation and amortization
Income from operations
Net income
Deferred cost additions
Capital expenditure additions

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Petroienm Transport  Intercompany
service Services eliminations Total
SR SR SR SR
5,821,568,653 740,657,782 (246,644,339)  6,315,582,096
5,102,565,986  350.316,123 (246.644,339)  5.206,237,770
12,080,185,919 416,906,544 (141,013,476) 12,356,078,987
11,602,282,054 300,248,762 (141,013,476) 11,761.517,340
477,903,865 116,637,782 - 594,561,647
360,909,457  46,788.450 - 407.697.907
317254284 53,587,638 - 370,841.922
195,853,438 45,973,480 - 241,826,918
929,801 - - 929,801
281,833,722 121,488,763 - 403.322,485
4918515300 671,645,038  (154,767,501) 3435,392,937
4,293232 915 301,777,684  (134,767,501) 4,440,243,098
8,865331,832 350,843,505  (106.560,563) 9,109,614,772
8,502,339,398 262,393,285  (106,560,563) 8,658,172,120
362992434 88,450.218 - 451,442,652
334,000,592 48,846,125 = 382,846,717
248,888,771 35,914,102 - 284.802.873
141,072,504 35,732.462 - 176,804.986
3.514.486 - - 8,514,486
176,383,580 63 418,650 - 235.802.230

The Company’s Board of Directors iri their meeting held on 29 Jumada AlThani 1444 H (corresponding to 22

January, 2023) recommended the following:

Distribution of cash dividends of SR 2 per share totalling SR 150 million representing 20% of the

Company’s share capital.

- Disburse angmount of SAR 500,000 Lo each member of the board of directors and the secretary of the
board of directers for the year 2022. The amount distributed as in accordance with the regulations of the
ministry of commerce and the Capital Market Authority

The above recommendations are subjected to the genernl assembly and regulatory approvals.

In the opinion of management, there have been no significant subsequent events since the end of the year that would
require disclosure or mmendment in these (inancial statements.

P
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Commission rate risk
- Currency risk
= Conceniration risk

This note presents information abaut the company's exposire to 2ach of the above risks, the company's objectives.
policies-and processes for measuring and managing risk. and the company's managemeant of capital.

Risk management framework
The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight af company’s risk management
framework.

The company's risk management palicies are estublished to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company,
to sei appropriate risk limits and controls. and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

Risk manggement polivies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changss in market conditions and the
company’s activities:

The company, through its maining and management standards and procedures, aims 10 develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and abligations

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party will fail to'discharge an obligation and will cause the other party to incur 2
financial loss. The Company’s policy iy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credis
worthiness evaluation process, Financial instruments that expose the Company 1o concentrations of cradit risk consist
primarily of accounts recelvable, The Compuny places its bunk balances with a number of fingncial institutions with
sound credit ratings and has a policy of limiting its balances deposited with each institution, The Company does rot
believe that there is a significant risk of non-perfarmance by these financial institutions, The Company does not
consider itself expesed 10 a concentration ef credit risk with respect to accounts receivabic Note (13) due 1o its
diverse customer base operating in various industries and located in many regions.

The credit risk assessment of receivables requires additional estimates of credit risk using expected credit loss
derived from the probability of defauh, exposure at default, and loss given default

The carrying emount of the financial assets represents the maximun: eredit exposure. The maximum exposure (o
credit risk =t the financial position date at 31 December was as follows:

Requested value

In Saudi Riyal As of December 31, As of Degember 31,
. 2022 2021

Trade acceunts receivable, net 409,794,354 333,522.920
Investment at fair value through profit or loss = 19,956,843
Cash and cash equivalents 148,166,876 273,964,384
Contract assets 75,119,084 37.039437
Other assets 208,474,705 172,310,537
Due from related parties 2,193,242 2229230

843,748,261 $39.223.351

A
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(A Saudi Joint Stoek Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

33) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

It is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet comminnents associated with
financizl instruments, Liquidity. risk may result from an inability to sell a financisl assst quickly at an amount close
1o its fair value. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that Islamic bank facilities are available, The
terms and conditions of the facilitics are disclosed ih note (16), The Company's terms of sales require amaunts 1o be
paid either on cash on delivery or on terms basis, Trade payables are normally settled within 60 days of the date of
purchase,

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments:

December 31, 2022

Carrying Contractual Cash

In Saudi Riyal Amount Flows Less than 2 year  More than 3 year
Loans 250,857,143 (250,857,143) (240,571,429) (10.285,714)
Lease Liabilities 3.219,470,242 (3,219,470,242) (313,414.859) (2,9056,055383)
Trade payables 1,175282,874 (1,175,282,874) (1,175,282,874) -
Due te related party 2,100,922 (2,100,922) (2,100,922) -
Accrued expenses and 435,261,759 (435.261,759) (435,261.739) -
aiher liabilities
Zakai payable 11,880,835 (11.880.835) (11,880,835) -
Employees' defined 111,383,995 (111,383,995) - (111,383,995)
benefiis liabilities

5,206,237,770 (5,206,237,770) (2,178.512,678) (3.027,725,092)
December 31, 2021 Carrying Contractual Cash
In Saudi Riyal Amount Flows Less than a year  More than a year
Loans 81,571,429 (81.571,429) (33,071.429) (48,500.000)
Lease Liabilities 2.930,705,841 (2.930.705.841) (332,676.161) (2,598,029,680)
Trade payables 916,284,694 (916.284,694) (916,284,694 -
Due to related party 1,822,077 (1.822,077) (1.822,077)
Accrued expenses and 408.567,231 (108,567,231) {408.567.231) -
other liabilities
Zakat payable 9.978,098 (9.978,098) (9.978,098) -
Employees' defined 91,313,728 (91,313,728) . (91.313,728)
benefits liabilities

4,440 243 09§ (4,440,243 098) (1,702,399,690) (2,757,843 .408)




Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

33) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Commission rate risk
Commission rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruntents will fuctuate due to changes in the prevailing
markel commission rates. The Company is subject 1o commission rate risk on ils commission bearing islamic short
term and long term facilities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the income to reasonably possible changes in commission rates,
with 2ll other variables held constant. There is no impact on the Company’s equity.

The sensitivity of the income is the effect of the assumed changes in commission rates on the Company's profit for
one year, hased on the floating commission rate financial liabilities held at 31 December:

Inereasyfidecrease) in bases paints Effect on scome for the year
2022 2021
SR SR
+5 (125,429) (40,786)
=10 (250,857) (81.,571)
-5 125,429 40,786
-10 250,857 81,571

Currency risk

It is the risk that the value of # linancial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Management monitors fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, and believes that the C ompany is not exposed
ta significant currency risk since the Company did not undertake significant transactions in currencies other than
Saudi Riyal and US DoHars. The Saudi Riyal is pegged to the US Dollar. accordingly, balances and wransactions in
US Dollars are not considered to represent significan! currency risk.

Cancentration risk

The company's purchases from a major supplier (Saudi Arabian Oil Company - Aramco) during the year amounting
10 10.724 million Saudi riyals represent 98% of the company's total purchases (2021: 7.796 million Saudi riyals.
989 of the company’s total purchases), The company expects to maintain the relationship with this supplier.

Fair Value

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to wansfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measirement date in the principal or. in its absenes, the most
advantageous market 10 which the Company has access at that date. The fair value, of a liability reflects its non-
performancs risk.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair values aye categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
technigues as follows:

-~ Level |: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or lizhilities

- Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included level | that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly

{i.e, as prices) ar indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
- Level 3: inpuls for the asset or liability that are not based on absarvable market data (unobservable inputs).

A
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair Value (Continued)

Value Lewvel (1) Level (2) Levei (3)
December 31,2022 SR SR SR SR
Financial assets
Investment a1 amontised cost 143,000,000 43,000,000 100,000,000 -
Financial liabilities
Loans 250,857,143 = 230,857,143 -
Vialire Level (1) Level (2) Level (3)
December 31, 2621 SR SR SR SR

Financial assets
Invesiment at fair value through profitand loss 19,956,843 19,956,843 - -

Finzncial liabilitiss
Lozns 81,571,429 - 81,571 429 -

The company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents. commerciat
and debir accounts, cemmercial credit accounts, amounts payable and other current liabilities, given that their book
values are a reasonable approximation of the fair value and tha is largely due to the shor-term maturity dates for
these instruments,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Trade receivable Yexpected credif losses”

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of the full amount is no
langer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individuul basis. Amounts
which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and an allowance applicd
according 1o the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

When measuring ECL, the Company uscs reasonable 2nd supportable forward-loaking information that is based on
assumptions for the future movement of vatious econoimic drivers and how these drivers affect each other.

The possibility of default

The probability of default is a key input in measuring expected credit l0ss. The probability of default is an estimata
of the probability of default over a certain period of time, which includes the calculation of historical data, assumptions
and expectations regarding fiture conditions.

Loss given default

Lass given defaull is an estimate of the loss given default. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that the financier expects to collect, wking into account cash Mows from collateral and integrated
credit adjusiments.

At the balance sheer date, gross trade accounts receivables were 427,714,940 SR (2021: SR 341.779.744). and the

Provision for credit losses was SR (17.920,586) (2021: SR (8,256,824) Any dilference hatween the amounts actually
teliected in future periods and the amounts expected will be recognised in the statement of incone.

=
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Aldrees Petroleum and Transport Services Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2022

34) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of inventories
inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsalete. an estimate

is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant anounts this estimation is performed on an individual
basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collactively and an
allowance applied according to the inventory type and the degrec of ageing or obsolescence. based on historical selling

prices.

Useful lives of property and equipment

The Company managemen! determines the estimated useful lives of its property and equipment for caleulating
depreciation. The estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear.
Managemen: reviews the uscful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the
management beligves the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

COMPARATIVE FIGURS

Certain of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current vear.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financiz| statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 Jumada AlThani, 1442 H (corresponding to
January 22 2023),

e
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